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The following is a Company Announcement issued by HUDSON MALTA P.L.C., a
company registered under the laws of Malta with company registration number C 83425
(hereinafter the ‘Company’), pursuant to the Listing Rules issued by the Listing
Authority.

Quote
Publication of HHL’s Audited Financial Statements

The Company announces that the Annual Report and Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements of Hudson Holdings Limited (C 37866) [hereinafter ‘HHL'] for the period ended 31%
December 2020 have been approved on the 24" June 2021 by the Board of directors and by
the shareholders of HHL in terms of the company’s articles of association. HHL is the ultimate
parent company of the Hudson Group.

Pursuant to a commitment made by the Board of directors of HHL as set out in the Prospectus
dated 23" March 2018, a copy of HHL's afore-mentioned Financial Statements is available for
viewing below as an attachment to this announcement and at the Company’s registered office,
and is also available for download from the following link on the Hudson Group’s website:
https://hudson.com.mt/investor-relations/.

Unquote

Dr Luca Vella
Company Secretary

25" June 2021
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HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Directors’ report

The directors present thelr report of Hudson Holdings Limited (the *Company”) and the Group of which it Is
the parent for the year ended 31 December 2020

Principal activities

The Company holds investments in a number of subsidiary companies and an associated company involved
in the retall and distribution of branded consumer products in Malta and internationally (as detailed In Nole
8 1o the financial statements). The Company carries out the central management function through which it
furthers the business of the Group.

Review of the business development and financial position
Group results

The year under review has been an unprecedented one for the Group with the impact of Covid-19 negatively
impacting revenue generation across its retail and wholesale business, with periods of enforced store
closures, lower traffic when open, and supply chain issues. Consequently, the Group curtailed its physical
retail expanston with the result that physical retail store openings were limited to 3, whilst it closed 4 retall
stores, including ils store in Spain. In the meantime, it expanded its online presence by opening a new
online store. At the end of 2020, the Group operated 46 stores in 4 countries and 3 e-commerce sites.

The Groups’ turnover decreased by 25% from €113.2 million in 2019 to €84.8 million in 2020 with gross
profit reduced to €22.3 million, €9.1 million Jower than the €31.4 million reported in 2019. Despite the
prevailing circumstances, the Group managed to limit the impact on its gross margin, achieving a slightly
lower margin in 2020 of 26% compared to 28% in 2019.

Strong cost reduction measures taken by management, rent abatement by landlords and support from
Governments resulled in a significant reduction in net operating and administralive costs by €5.5 million,
with the result that operating profit amounted to €1.7 million, compared to €5.3 million in 2018.

ARer taking into consideration Lhe impact of financing costs, which were greater than in 2020, the Group
reported a loss before tax of €0.8 million compared to a profit before tax of €3.7 milllon in 2019,

From a balance sheet aspect, management managed to improve the liquidity position of the Group with net
current assets of €8.2 million as at 31 December 2020 compared to €4.9 million in 2019. Further, reduced
capital investment activities and additional borrowing rasulted in an overall improvement in the cash position
of the Group as at 31 December 2020
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HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Directors’ report - continued
Company results and dividends

The Company registered a loss before tax of €492,783 for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: profit before tax of €150,610) mainly as a result of an increase in the movement in provision for
intercompany receivables,

The income statement and statements of other comprehensive income are set out on pages 14 and 15.
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend and, propose that the balance of retained
eamnings amounting to €16,379,207 (2019: €16,872,792) be carried forward to the nex! financial year,

Key performance indicators
Non-financial key performance

During the year, the board has further strengthened its governance, compliance and control framework
through new procedures and continued its personal development plans across the Group to ensure that its
employees are aligned lo the Group's overall goals.

Significant risks and uncertainties

The Group's principal risks include financial risks as disclosed in Note 2 to these financhal statements,
obsolescence of inventories, loss of market share as a result of other participants entering the market,
negative developments in the economic or political environment.and the continued impact of COVID-19.

Whilst the Group has significant operations located in stable economies, the Group also operates in
emerging markels with a lesser degree of social, political and economic stability. The Group aims to mitigate
this risk through operating solely with leading brands of international repute which place itin a better position
lo weather any unexpected adverse conditions.
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Directors’ report - continued
Significant risks and uncertainties - continued

The impact of COVID-19

As reflected in the Group's results, the pandemic has impacted the Group's revenue streams due to lower
foolfall and store closures as well as supply chain Issues. To manage the situation the Group needed to
change the way it does business in general, look for efficiencies and continue with ils efforts to digitalise
the business.

From the initial stages of the pandemic the Group took mitigating action to protect its cash position whilst
continuing significant projects that wifl enable future growth. Specifically, the Group:

= Postponed most of the physical retail investments planned for 2020 and is now undertaking these

investments in 2021

Cancelled or postpened the intake of inventory to ensure that its inventory levels are well managed.

Obtained extended payment terms from key suppliers.

Awvalled itself of government support.

Obtained moratoria on repayment of loan facilities with its bankers, a temporary increase of its

overdraft facility to ensure It has adequate working capital headroom, and secured MDB loans

amounting to €5.35 million to further strengthen its long-term liquidity position. These are in place in

2021,

» Launched an eCommerce site in Malta to be able to support customers with their refail needs even
when physical stores were closed.

» Closely managed its cost base including wage reductions lead by the senior leadership team and
obtained lease concessions from lessors.

The pandemic is expected lo continue to impact performance even in 2021 with retail stores lockdowns,
reduced frading hours and supply chain issues. Management is reviewing the situation on a regular basis
and adapting operations as the situation develops. The Group has and is continuously looking at ways to
improve performance from existing operations and from new business

The cashflow projections for 2021, taking into account measures being taken and assuming different
scenarios, show that the Group has sufficient liquidity to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due. The directors are of the opinion that, based on the projected cashflows emanating from the assumed
scenarios, the use of the going-concern assumption remains appropriate and there are no material
uncertainties that might cast significant doubt on going concern.

Future developments

On 7 April 2021 Hudson Holdings Limited entered into a condilional share-for-share exchange agreement
to acquire Trilogy Limited, a leading premium fashion retailer in Malta. The agreement is subject to the
satisfaction of certain condilions precedent and upon their completion, an intra-group restructuring is to be
carried out, whereby Trilogy Limited will become a fully owned subsidiary of Hudson Malta p.l.c. Through
this acquisition the Graup will further consalidate its positton as Malta's leading sport and fashion retailer.
Trilogy's operations will be merged within the Group's and the results of Trilogy Limiled will be Included in
the Groups' consolidated results of 2021. The Group expects this acquisition to positively contribute to the
Group's profitability despite the current negative impact of Covid-19

E A ———




HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Directors' report - continued
Directors
The directors of the Company who held office during the year were.

George Amato

Alfred Borg

Christopher Muscat

Kevin Grech (resigned on 22 December 2020}

Ray Grech

Martin Gregory

Kevin Valenzia

Tara Borg Manche

Etienne Camenzuli

David Cherubino (appointed on 22 December 2020)

The Company's Atticles of Association do not require any directors to retire.
Statement of directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements

The directors are required by the Mallese Companies Act (Cap. 386) lo prepare financial statements which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Parent Company as at the end of each
reporting period and of the profit or loss for that period.

in preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for:

e ensuring that the financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with international Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU;

« selecting and applying appropriate accounting policles;

» making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances;

= ensuring that the financizal statements are prepared an the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the Group and the Parent Company will continue in business as a going concem.

The direclors are also responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining internal control as the
direclors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statemants that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and that comply with the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386).
They are alsa responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the Parent Company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularities.

The financial statements of Hudson Holdings Limited for the year ended 31 December 2019 are included
in the Annual Report 2019, which Is published in hard-copy printed form and may be made available on the
Company's website. The directors are responsible for the maintenance and inlegrity of the Annual Report
on the websile in view of their responsibility for the controls over, and the securily of, the website. Access
to information published on the Company's website is available in other countries and jurisdictions, where
legislation governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from requirements
or practice in Malta
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Directors’ report - continued

Auditors

PricewalerhouseCacpers have indicated their willingness to cantinue in office and a resolution for their re-
appointment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

On behaif of the boa

her Muscat
ifector

\, IRegistered o
“Hudson House
Burmarrad Road,
Burmarrad
St. Paul's Bay SPB 9060
Malta

23 June 2021
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Independent auditor’s report
To the Shareholders of Hudson Holdings Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion:

» The Group financial statements and Parent Company financial statements (the “financial
statements”) give a true and fair view of the Group and the Parent Company’s financial position of
Hudson Holdings Limited as at 31 December 2020, and of the Group's and the Parent Company’s
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financiat Reporting Standards ('IFRSs') as adopted by the EU; and

+ The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Maltese
Companies Act (Cap. 386).

What we have andited

Hudson Holdings Limited’s financial statements, set out on pages 12 to 68, comprise:

L
o the Consolidated and Parent Company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2020;

» the Consolidated and Parent Company incore statements and statements of other comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

o the Consolidated and Parent Company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended;
s the Consolidated and Parent Company statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explantory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethies for Professional
Accountants {including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants {IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements of the
Accountancy Profession (Code of Ethics for Warrant Holders) Directive issued in terms of the
Accountancy Profession Act {Cap. 281) that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Malta, We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these Codes.
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Hudson Holdings Limited

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 1.1 to these financial statements that explains the impact of COVID-19 on
the Group's operations and financial performance, This matter is considered to be of fundamental
importance to the understanding of the financial statements due to its nature and significance. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other information

‘The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’
report (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon except as explicitly stated within the Report on other legal
and regulatory requirements.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated,

If, based on the work we have performed we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the dircctors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the requirements of the Maltese Companies Act
(Cap. 386), and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
errar.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

e —— e DL T —
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Hudson Holdings Limited

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of en audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to madify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditar’s report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this
statement is not a guarantee as to the Group's or the Parent company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. In particular, it is difficult to evaluate all of the potential implications that COVID-19 will
have on the Group’s and the Parent company’s trade, customers and suppliers, and the disruption
to their business and the overall economy.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
i 8 manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate andit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit,
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
‘Fo the Shareholders of Hudson Holdings Limited

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The Annual Report and Financial Statements 2020 contains other areas required by legislation or
regulation on which we are required to report. The Directors are responsible for these other areas.

The table below sets out these areas presented within the Annual Report, our related responsihilities and
reporting, in addition to our responsibilities and reporting reflected in the Other information section of our
report. Except as outlined in the table, we have not provided an audit opinion or any form of assurance.

Arca of the Annual Our responsibilities
Report and Financial

Statements 2020 and
the related Directors’

responsibilities

Directors’ report We are required to consider

{on pages 1to 5) whether the information given in

The Maltese Companies the Du:ectors report_for the

Act (Cap. 386) requires financial year for which the
financial statements are

the directors to prepare a
Directors' report, which
includes the contents

prepared is consistent with the
financial statements.

required by Article 177 of
the Act and the Sixth We are also required to express
Schedule to the Act. an opinion as to whether the

Directors’ report has been
prepared in accordance with the
applicable legal requirements.

In addition, we are required to
state whether, in the light of the
knowledge and understanding of
the Company and its
environment obtained in the
course of our audit, we have
identified any material
misstatements in the Directors’
report, and if so to give an
indication of the nature of any
such misstatements.

QOur reporting

In our opinion:

¢ the information given in the
Directors’ report for the
financial year for which the
financial statements are
prepared is consistent with
the financial statements; and

» the Directors' report has
been prepared in accordance
with the Maltese Companies
Act (Cap. 386).

We have nothing to report to you
in respect of the other
responsibilities, as explicitly
stated within the Other
information section.

L




Independent auditor’s report- continued
To the Shareholders of Hudson Holdings Limited

Area of the Annual Our responsibilitics Our reporting
Report and inancial

Stalements 2020 and
the related Directors’
responsibilities

Other matters on whichweare  We have nothing to report to
required to report by exception  you in respect of these
We also have responsibilities under ~ Tesponsibilities.
the Maltese Companies Act (Cap.
386) to report to you if, in our
opinion:
s adequate accounting records have
not been kept, or returns
adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not
visited by us.
= the financial statements are not
in agreement with the accounting
records and returns.

» we have not received all the
information and explanations
which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we
require for our audit.

10



pwec

Independent auditor’s report - continued
To the Shareholders of Hudson Holdings Limited

Other matter — use of this report

Our report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Parent Company's
shareholders as a body in accordance with Article 179 of the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386) and for
no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior written consent.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

78, Mill Strect

Zone 5, Central Business District
Qormi CBD 5090

Malta

f"/
Lucienne Pace Ross

Partner

23 June 2021

11
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Statements of financial position

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Lease receivables

Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in associate

Equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Financial assets at amortised cost

Trade and other receivables

Deferred tax assets

Tolal non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Lease receivables

Trade and other receivables
Current tax assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

Notes

14

12

15

As at 31 December

Group Company
2020 2019 202¢ 2019
€ € € €
1,914,829 1,263,628 655,560 -
10,096,240 10,839,527 900,600 1,039,292
23,632,459 26,750,948 824,095 834,873
- - 7672965 9436815
- - 18,451,227 18,451,227
533,198 762,913 A =
- 321,000 - 321,000
- - 3,391,625 3,391,625
164,051 165,509 - -
869,702 844,066 67,315 39,855
37,200,479 40,947,591 31,963,387 33,514,687
14,138,417 15,038,922 - -
- - 1,074,070 1,116,526
13,702,437 17,688,770 1,876,499 2,713,783
167,317 33,143 - -
17,685,787 12,192,223 1,173,033 1,143,632
45,693,958 44,953,058 4,123,602 4,973,941
82,894,437 85,900,649 36,086,989 38,488,628

12



HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Statements of financial position - continued

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves attributable
to owners of the Company

Share capital

Share premium

Other reserve

Forelgn exchange translation reserve

Fair value reserve

Retained earnings

Non-controlling interest
Total equity
Non-current liabllities
Borrowings

Deferred tax liabillties
Lease liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

TFrade and other payables
Lease liabilities
Borrowings

Current tax liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Notes

10

19
13

18
17
19

As at 31 December

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
85,107 85,107 85,107 85,107
873,056 873,056 873,056 873,056
272,818 272,818 - -
1,345,120 1,448,481 = -
(418,476) (97,476) {418,476} (97,476)
6,595,699 7,372,303 16,379,207 16,872,792
8,753,224 9,954,289 16,918,894 17,733,479
(162,714) {165,910) - -
8,590,510 9,788,379 16,918,884 17,733,479
16,188,826 12,263,493 5,001,644 4,928,792
45,231 54,562 8,402 -
20,589,229 23,714,890 8,475,145 10,220,375
36,823,286 36,032,945 13,48516t1 15,149,167
25,408,326 27,385,752 4,122,868 3,801,160
3475410  2,982171 1,115,909 1,215,191
7,514,789 7,176,878 409,548 491,413
1,082,116 2,534,524 34,611 98,218
37,480,641 40,079,325 5,682,934 5605982
74,303,927 76,112,270 19,168,095 20,755,148
82,894,437 85,900,649 36,086,989 38,488,628

The noles on pages 20 to 68 are an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 12 to 68 were authorised for issue by the Boarn

were signed on its behalf by:

Alfred Bo
Director

23 June 2021 and

~—"
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HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Income statements

Year ended 31 December

Group Company
Notes 2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
Revenue 20 84,755,111 113,216,261 3,680,544 4,323,254
Cost of sales 21 (62,449,346) (81,767,241)  (21,386) (61,146)
Gross profit 22,305,765 31,449,020 3,659,158 4,262,108

Operalion and administrative expenses 21 {20,548,060) (25,683,361) (3,596,133) (4,039,512)
Net impairment losses on financial and
contract assels 21 {100,579)  (497,834) (378,612) 1,936

Income from investments in subsidiaries 384,615
Operating profit 1,657,126 5,267,825 {315,587) 609,146
Finance income 23 1,532 30,353 574,220 604,301
Finance costs 24 (2,231,694} (2,093,289) (751,416) {839,464)
lmpalrment of investments in subsidiaries . - E (313,373}
Share of (loss)/profit in associale {201,626} 471,581 - -
{Loss)/profit before tax (774,662) 3,676,470  (492,783) 150,610
Income tax credil/(expense) 25 1,154 (1,979,838} {802} (162,948)
(Loss)/profit for the year (773,508) 1,696,632  (493,685) (12,338)
{Loss)iprofit attributable to:
Owners of the Company (776,704) 1,695,361  (493,585) (12,328)
Non-controlling interests 3,196 1,271 - -
{773,508) 1,696632  (493,685) (12,338)

The notes on pages 20 to 68 are an integral part of these financial statements.

14



HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Statements of other comprehensive income

Notes

{Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
ftemns that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss:
Changes In the fair value of equity assets
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
- Movement in fair value 10
- Movement in defermed tax liability 13

Net movernent in fair value
Currency franslation differences - gross
and net of tax

Other comprehensive income for
the: year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Year ended 31 December

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

€ € € €
{773,508) 1,696,632 {493,585) (12,338)
(321,000) (1,179,000) (321,000) (1,179,000)

- 202,786 - 202,786
(321,000) (976,214) {321,000) (976,214)
(103,361) 442,423 - -
(424,361)  (533,791) {321,000} (976,214)
(1,197,869) 1,162,841 {814,585) {988,552}
{1,201,068) 1,161,570 (814,585) (988,552)
3,196 1,271 - -
{1,197,869) 1,162,841 {814,585) {988,552)

The notes on pages 20 to 68 are an integral part of these financial stataments.

15
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HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Statements of changes in equity - continued

Company Fair
Share Share Retained value
capital premium earnings reserve Tolal
Notes € € € € €
Balance as 1 January 2019 85,107 873,056 17,685,130 878,738 18,522,031
Transactions with Owners
Dividends declared 26 - - (800,000} - (800,000)
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year - - (12,338) - (12,338)
Fair value adjustment 10 - - - {976,214) {876,214)
Balance at 31 December
2019 85,107 873,056 16,872,792 (97,476) 17,733,479
Balance as 1 January 2020 85107 873,056 16,872,792 {97,476) 17,733,479
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year - - (493,585) - (493,585)
Fair value adjustment 10 - - - (321,000) (321,000)
- - (493,585) {321,000) {814,585)
Balance at 31 December
2020 85,107 873,056 16,379,207 {418,476) 16,918,894

The notes on pages 20 to 68 are an Integral part of these financial statemenils.
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HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Statements of cash fiows

Notes

Cash flows from operating

activities
Cash generated from operations 28
Finance income 23
interest paid on borrowings 24
Interest paid on lease liabilities 24
Income tax paid
Foreign currency translation movements

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing
activities

Purchases of properly, plant and
equipment

Purchase of intangible asset

Investment in subsidiary

o L

Net cash used in investing aclivities

Cash flows from financing
activities

Dividends paid

Repayments of borrowings

Proceeds from drawdowns of
borrawings

Principal elements of lease payments
(IFRS18)

Net cash generated from
financlng activities

Movement in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year 15

Year ended 31 December

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

€ € € €
10,384,363 19,421,944 1,116,343 2,363,476

1,532 30,353 574,220 694,301
(1,143,115)  (1,0680,481) {350,452) {390,1986)
(1,088,579) (1,032,808) (400,964} (449,268)
(1,610,395) (1,726,972) (63,607} (160,136)
419,423 309,492 {19,858) -
6,963,229 15,941,528 855,682 2,058,177
(1,891,896) (6,573,360) {41,873) {582,648)
(674,392) (10,465} (655,560) -

- - - {26)
{2,566,288) (6,583,825) {697,433} (582,674)
- (800,000) - (800,000}
{590,908} {1,491,117) {270,760) (119,919}
4,785,556 146,168 269,967 410,410
(3,166,622) (4,054,110) (119,834) {28,622)
1,028,026 (6,199,059) (120,627) (538,131)
5,424,967 3,158,646 37,622 937,372
11,767118 8608472 1,021,103 83,731
17,192,085 11,767,118 1,058,725 1,021,103

The notes on pages 20 to 68 are an integral parl of these financial statements.
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HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report and Consclidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Notes to the financial statements

1.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statemenls
are set oul below. These policies have been consislently applied lo all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

1.1 Basls of preparation

The conselidated financial statements include the financial statements of Hudson Holdings Group
and its subsidiaries and are prepared in accordance with the requirements of International Financial
Reporting Standards {(IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and with the requirements of the Maltese
Companies Act (Cap. 386).

The preparation of financial statements in conformily with IFRSs as adopted by the EU requires the
use of certain accounting eslimates. It also requires Directors to exercise their judgement in the
process of applylng the Group’s accounting poficies. The areas Involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumplions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 3.

As reflected in the Group's results, the pandemic has impacted the Group's revenue streams due to
lower fooifall and store closures as well as supply chain issues. To manage the situation the Group
needed lo change the way it does business in general, look for efficiencies and continue with its
efforts to digitalise the business.

From the initial stages of the pandemic the Group took mitigating action to protect its cash position
whilst continuing significant projects that will enable future growth. Specifically, the Group:

« Postponed retail investments ariginally planned for 2020 and is now undertaking these
Investments in 2021,

= Cancelled or postponed the intake of inventory to ensure that its inventory levels are well
managed.
Obtained extended payment terms from key suppliers.
Availed itself of government support.
Obtained moratoria on repayment of loan facilities with its bankers, a temporary increase of
its overdraft facility to ensure it has adequate working capital headroom and secured MDB
loans amounting to €5.35 million to further strengthen its long-term liquidity position.

= Launched an eCommerce site In Malta to be able to support customers with their retail needs
even when physical slores were closed

» Closely managed its cost base including wage reductlons lead by the senior leadership team
and obtained lease concessions from lessors.

The pandemic is expected to continue to impact performance even in 2021 with retail stores
lockdowns, reduced trading hours, and supply chain issues, Management is reviewing the situation
on a regular basis and adapting operations as the situation develops. The Group has and is
continuously looking al ways to improve performance from existing operations and from new
business.




HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report and Consolidated Financlal Statements - 31 December 2020

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.1 Basis of preparation - confinued

The cashflow projections for 2021, taking into account measures being taken and assuming different
scenarios, show that the Group has sufficient liquidity lo meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due.

The directors are of the opinion thal, based on the projected cashflows emanaling from the assumed
scenarlos, the use of the going concern assumption remains appropriate and there are no materfal
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the Group and Company’s abillity to continue as a
going concern and accordingly continue to adopt the going concern assumption in the preparation of
the financia) statements. Accordingly, the financial stalements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards effectiva in 2020

In 2020, the Group and Company adopted amendments to existing standards that are mandatory for
the Group and Company's accounting period beginning on 1 January 2020. The adoption of these
revisions fo the reguirements of IFRSs as adopted by the EU did not result in changes to the Group
and Company's accounting policies impacting the financial performance and position. Furthermore,
the Group has adopted amendments to IFRS 16 issued in May 2020 in relation to COVID-18 related
rent concessions. The impact of adoption of this amendment is further explained in note 17,

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are nof yet adopted

Certain new standards, amendments and Interpretations to existing standards have been published
by the date of authorisation for issue of these financial statements but are mandatory for the Group's
accounting periods beginning after 1 January 2020. The Group and Company have not early adopted
these revisions to the requirements of IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the Group and Company's
directors are of the opinion that there are no requirements that will have a possible significant impact
on the Group and Company's financial statements in the period of initial application.

1.2 Consolidatiocn
(a) Subsidiaries

Subsldiaries are all entities {including structured entities) over which the Group has conlrol. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
invalvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

In the Company's separate financial statements, Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for by the
cost method of accounling, t.e. at cost less impairment. Cost includes directly attributable costs of
the investment. Provisions are recarded where, in the opinion of the directors, there is an impairment
in valug, Where there has been an impairment in the value of an Investment, it Is recognised as an
expense in the period in which the diminution is identified. The results of subsidiaries are reflected
in the Company's separate financial statements only to the extent of dividends receivable. On
disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
is charged or credited to profit or loss.
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HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report and Consclidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.2 Consaolidation - continued
{b) Transactions with non-conirolling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests, where the acquisition or disposal of
partial interests in a subsidlary has no impact on the Group's ability to govern control the subsidiary's
financial and operating policies, as transactions with equily owners of the Group. For purchases from
non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carmrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses
on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases lo have control, any retained interest in the entity is remsasured to its fair
value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profil or loss.
The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had direclly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounls previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclasslified to profit or loss where appropriate,

{c) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisifion method of accounting to account for business combinations that
fall within the scope of IFRS 3. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assels transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The cansideration transferred includes the fair value of any
assetl or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabililies and contingent liabilities assumed
{identifiable net assets) in a business combination are measured initlally at their fair values at the
acquisiion date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controliing interest's proportionate shara of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net assets.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any ron-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the Group's share of the idenlifiable net assets acquired. If this
is less than the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss.

Business combinations belween entities under common control, which do not fall within the scope of
IFRS 3, are accounted for using the predecessor method of accounting. Under the predecessor
method of accounting, assels and Habilities are incorporated at the predecessor camying values,
which are the camrying values of assets and liabilitles of the acquirad entity from the consclidated
financial statements of the highest entity that has common contral and for which consolidated
financial statements are prepared. When the controlling parly does nol prepare consolidated financia!
statements because it is not a parent company, the financial stalements amount of the acquired entity
are used.
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HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.2 Consaolidation - continued
{c) Business combinations - continued

No new goodwill arlses in predecessor accounting, and any difference between the consideration
given and the aggregate book value of the assets and liabilities (as of the date of transaction) of the
acquired entity, is include in equity In a separate reserve. The financial statements incorporate the
acquired entity's results only from the date on which the business combination between entities under
comimon control occurred.

Under both methods of accounting, upon consolidation, inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between Group companles are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminaled but considered an impalirment indicator of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary {o ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value at the date when conlrol is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venlure or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean thal amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

1.3 Foreign currency translation
{a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial stalements of each of the Group's entilies are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operales (‘the functional currency’).
The consclidated financial statements are presented in euro, which is the Company's functional and
the Group's presentalion currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency {ransactions are translated into the funclional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Forelgn
exchange gains and losses resuiting from the settiement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencles are
recognised in the income slatement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivatents are
presented in the Income slatemant within ‘finance income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented In the income statement within ‘other incomef(charges) - net’.
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HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.3 Foreign currency translation - continued
{c} Group companies

Income statements of foreign entities are translated into the Group's presentation currency at the
average exchange rales for the year and staternents of financial position are translated at the
exchange rates ruling at year-end. All resulling translation differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are taken lo other comprehensive income. On disposal or partial disposal of a foreign
entity, translation differences that were previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
recegnised in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the clesing rate. Translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

1.4 Intangible assets
{a) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating
units {(or groups of cash-generating unils) that is expected to benefit from the synergles of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit o which geodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverabie amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each assetin the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill Is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill Is Included in
the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

{b) Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at histotical cost. Trademarks and licences acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks and licences
have a finite useful life and are carried at cosl less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of trademarks and licences over their
estimated useful lives of 15 to 20 years.
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HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Stataments - 31 December 2020

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, is stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly atiributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's cairying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when It is probable that future economic benefits associaled with the ilem will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured refiably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repalrs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss statement during
the financia! period in which they are incurred

Depreciation is calculated on the stralght-line method to allocate the cost, or revalued amount, of the
assels to their residual values over their estimated useful life as follows:

%
Improvement lo premises 10
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment 20-33%
Plant and machinery 25
Motor vehicles 20

The assets residual values and useful llves are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with carrying amount and are recognised within ‘Other operating income’ in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is wrilten
down immediately to its recoverable amount (Note 1.7).

1.6 Leases
The Group is the lesses

Al inception of a contract, an entity shall assess whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for 2 period of time in exchange for consideration.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use assel and a corresponding liabllity at the date at which the
leased assel is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are Initially measured on a present value basls. Lease
liabilities include the nel present value of the following lease payments:

' fixed payments {including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives recelvable;

. variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

. amounts expected lo be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise thal
option, and

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that option.

25




HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued

1.6 Leases - continuved

The Group leases various properties. Rental contracts are typleally made of fixed periods bul may
have extension options to renew the lease afler the original period as described below. Lease terms
ara negotiated on an individual basis and contain a range of different terms and conditions, The
iease agreemenls do not impose any covenants. Leased assels may not be used as securily for
borrowing purposes.

Extension and termination options are Included in the property leases. These terms are used fo
maximise operational flexibility in respect of managing contracts. The extension and termination
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective lessor, In respect of the
property lease arrangements, the extension periods have been included In determining lease term of
the respective arrangement.

The table below describes the nature of the Group's leasing activities by type of right-of-use asset
{ROU) recognised on the balance sheet:

ROU No Range of | Average Average No No No of
asset of ROU | remalning | remaining | extension | of leases | of leases | leases with
assets lease lease oplion with with termination
leased term term considered | extension { option to options
{years) (years) {years) options | purchase
Properties 46 1-63 6 5-6 45 - 46

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that are linked to sales generated from a store.
For individual stores, up to 100% of lease paymenis are based on variable payment terms with
percentages ranging from 6.5% to 10% of sales. Variable payment terms are used for a variety of
reasons, Including minimising the fixed costs base for newly established stores. Variable lease
payments that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the condition
that triggers thase payments occurs.

Lease paymenis lo be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannol be
readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowlng rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to bormrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions
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Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.6 Leases - continued

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

J where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received;

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, where there is no third party financing; and

. makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.

Lease paymenls are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of Inlerest on the
remaining balance of the liabllity for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

+  any leass paymenis made at or before the commencement date less any lease incenlives
received; and

+  any inilial direct costs

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease
term on a straightdine basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's uselul life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assels are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or Joss, Shori-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumslances lhat create an
economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a lermination option. Extension
options (or periods after lermination options) are only included in the lease term If the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended {or not terminated).

For leases of properties, the following factors are normally the most relevant:

«  [f there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the Group is typically reasonably
certain to extend (or not terminale),

+  Ifany leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the Group is
typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate);

+  Otherwise, the Group considers other factars inciuding historical lease durations and the costs
and business disruption required to replace the leased asset.

The lease term Is reassessed if an option is actually exercised {(or not exercised) or the Group
becomes obliged to exercise {or not exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only
revised if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects this
assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee.
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continusd
1.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assels that have an indefinite useful life, for example certain intangible assets, are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes In circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which lhe
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value In use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash fiows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwilf that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

1.8 Financlal assets
1.8.1 Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI or through profit or
loss), and
= those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s businaess model for managing the financial assels and
the contractual terms of the cash flows

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit of loss or OCI.
For investments in equity instrumenis that are not held-for-trading, this will depend on whether the
Company has made an frrevocable election al the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment al fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Company reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business maodel for managing
those assets change.

1.8.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assels are deracognised when the
rights lo receive cashflows from financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

1.8.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its falr value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivalives are considered in their entirely when determining
whether thelr cashflows are solely payment of principal and interest
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.8 Financial assets - continued

1.8.3 Measurement - continued

Deabt Instrumenis

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business mode! for
managing the asset and cash flow characleristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories inte which the Company classified its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assels that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective inlerest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented on other gains/ (losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impaimment losses are presented as separate ling items in the
statement of profit or loss.

+ FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except
for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, lhe cumulalive gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses).

Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other gain/
(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as separate line items in the statement
of profit or loss.

+ FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost of FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subseguently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other gains/ (losses) in the period in
which it arises.

1.8.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-leoking basis the expected credit loss associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires
expected lifelime Iosses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables,
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.9 inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average cost method and comprises expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and
other costs incurred In bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs to be incurred in markeling, selling and distribution.

1.10 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables comprise amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services
performed In the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assels,

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment (Note 1.8.4). The
carrying amount of the assetis reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of
the loss is recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable is uncollectible, it Is written off against the
allowance account for trade and other receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against profit or loss.

1.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the staternent of financial position at face value. in the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposils held at call with
banks and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the
statement of financlal position.

1.12 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly atiributable to the issue of new
ordinary shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

1.13 Financial liabilities

The Group recognises a financial iiability in its statement of financial position when it becomnes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Group's financial fiabilities, other than derivative
contracts, are classified as financial liabllities measured at amortised cost, i.e. which are not at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial liabllities not at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
initially at fair value, being the fair value of consideration received, net of transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or the issue of the financial liability. These financial liabilities are
sutbsequently measured al amortised cost. The Group derecognises a financial lability from its
statement of financial position when lhe obligation specified in the contract or arrangement is
discharged, is cancelled or expires.

30



HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.14 Trade and other payables

Trade payables comprise obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operaling cycle of the business if
longer). If nol, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cosl using the effective interest method.

1.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at the fair value of proceeds recelved, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost, any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profil or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effeclive interest method. Borrowings are ctassified as current
llabililes unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer setlfement of the liabilily for at leasl
twelve months after the end of the reporting pericd. Borrowing costs are recognised In profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

1.16 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and seltle the liability simultaneously.

1.17 Provisions

Provislons for legal claims are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to setile
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

1.18 Cusrent and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in ather comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and thelr carrying amounts in the financial statements. However,
deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxabie profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates {and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred lax assel is realised, or the deferred tax llabllity is settled,
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.18 Current and deferred tax - continued

Delerred tax assels are recognised only to the extent that it Is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are offset when there Is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabllities and when the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to
income laxes levied by the same laxation authority on either the same taxable enlity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to seltle the balances on a net basis.

1.19 Deferred government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value whare there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with &l! attached conditions. Government
grants related to costs are deferred and recagnised in profit or loss over the period necessary to
match thern with the costs they are intended to compensate,

Gavernment grants refated to assels, i.e. in respect of the purchase of property, plant and equipment,
are included in liabilities as deferred government grants, and are credited to profit or loss on a straight
line basis over the expected lives of the relaled assets, presented within ‘Other operaling income’.

Grants related to income are presented as a deduction in reporting the related expense.
1.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue Is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of
goods and services in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is recognised upon
delivery of products or performance of services, and is stated net of sales tax, returns, rebates and
discounts.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, when it is
probable that fulure economic benefits will flow to the enlity and when specific criteria have been met
for each of the Company’s activities as described below.

{a) Salas of goods - wholesale

The Group sells a range of branded consumer products in the wholesale market. Sales of goods are
recognised when the Group has deslivered products to the wholesale customer, and there is no
unfulfiled obligation that could affect the wholesaler's acceptance of the products. Delivery does not
oceur until the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the wholesale customer, and
the wholesale customer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been salisfied.

(b) Sales of goads - refail
The Group operates a number of retall stores selling branded consumer products. Sales of goods

are recognised when a group entity sells a product o the customer., Retall sales are usually in cash
or by credit card.

32



HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Summary of significant accounting palicies - conlinued

1.20 Revenue recognition - continued

(¢) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to recelva payment is established.
{d) Interest income

Interest income is recognised for all interest-bearing instruments, using the effective interest method,
unless collectability is in doubt.

1.21 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution lo the company's shareholders is recagnised as a liability in the Group’s and
Company's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company's
shareholders.

Financial risk management
2.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activilies potentially expose it to a variety of financial risks: markst risk (including
currency risk, cash flow interest rale risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. The board of directors provides principles for
overall risk management, as well as policies covering risks referred to above and specific areas such
as investment of excess liquidity. The Group did not make use of derivative financial instruments to
hedge certain risk exposure ensuring the current and preceding financial years.
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Financial risk management - continued

2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

(a) Markel risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and
fiabilities which are denominated in a currency that is not the respective group enlity's functional

curiency.

The table below summarises the Group's exposure to foreign currencies, other than the functional
currency, as at 31 December 2020 and 2018.

Net
Assets Liabitities exposure
€ € €
Group
As at 31 December 2020
USD to EUR 602 (95,215) (94,613}
EUR to USD 434,016 (2,087,809) (1,653,793}
GBP to EUR 110,986 (232,623) {121,637)
Other currencies 70,605 - 70,605

616,209 (2,415,647) {1,799,438)

Net
Assets Liabilities exposure
€ € €
Group

As at 31 December 2019
USD to EUR 12,126 (1,019,184) (1,007,058}
EUR to USD 1,605 {116,517) (114,912)
GBP to EUR 228,723 (476,425) (247,702)
Other currencies 70,000 - 70,000

312,454  (1,692,26) (1,299,672)

Based on the amounts disclosed above, the directors are of the opinion that the Group is not
significantly exposed to changes in exchange rates. Accordingly, a sensitivity analysis disclosing how
profit or loss, and other comprehensive income, would be impacted by a change in interest rates that
was reasonably possible at the end of the reporting pericd, is not required.
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Financial risk management - continued

2.1 Financial risk factors - conlinued

{a) Market risk - continued

(i} Interest rate risk

In general, the Group and Company are exposed to risk associated with the effects of fluctuations in
the pravailing levels of market interest rates. The Group and Company's main exposure to interest
rate risk arises on the financial assets and liabilities described in the tables below. The Group and
Company’s borrowings are issued at variableffixed rates and expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. Management monitors the level of floaling rate borrowings as a measure of cash flow risk
taken on.

The exposure to cash flow interest rate risk as at 31 December is shown below;

Grottp Company
=4 Atfloatingrates
2020 2019 2020 2019

€ € € €
interest-bearing assels
Amounts owed by subsidiaries (Note 12) - . 980,169 2,299,257
Interest-bearing liabilities
Bank overdraft (Note 19) 493,702 425,105 114,308 122,529

Bank loans {Note 18) 6,157,047 6,345,065 796,882 797,676
Amounts owed to subsidiaries {Note 18) - - 2,232139 2,386,565

6,650,719 5,770,170 3,143,329 3,306,770

Net {6,650,719) (6,770,170) {2,163,160) (1,007,513)
Group Company
At fixed rates )
2020 2019 2020 2018
€ € € €

Interest-bearing assels
Lease receivables {Note 7) -
Gross loans from subsidiaries (Note 11) -

8,747,035 10,533,341
3,440,000 3,440,000

- - 12,187,036 13,973,341

Interest-bearing liabllities

Lease liabilities (Note 17) 24,064,639 26,697,061 9,591,024 11,435,566
Listed bond {(Note 19) 14,849,892 11,821,296 - -
Bark loans {Note 19) 5,203,004 848,905

Loan from subsidiary (Note 19) - 4,500,000 4,500,000

41,117,535 39,367,262 14,091,024 15,935,566

Net (41,117,536} (39,367,262} (1,903,889} (1,962,225)

as
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Financial risk management - continued

2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

{a} Market risk - continued

(ii) Interest rate risk - continued

Based on the amounts disclosed above, the directors are of the opinion that the Group and Company
are not significantly exposed lo changes In interest rates. Accordingly, a sensilivity analysis
disclosing how profit or loss, and other comprehensive income, woukd be impacted by a change in
interest rates that was reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period, is not required.

{b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from credit exposures to wholesale and retail customers, including outstanding
receivables and committed transactions, ioans receivable and cash and cash equivalents. The Group

and the Company's exposures to credit risk as at the end of the reporting periods are analysed as
follows.

Group Company
2020 2M9 2020 2019

€ € € €
Loans and recelvables category:
Lease receivables {Note 7) - - 8,747,035 10,553,341
Trade and other receivables - gross
(Note 12} 14,805,934 19,876,137 2,305,667 2,770,177
Loans and receivables (Note 11) - - 3,440,000 3,440,000
Cash and cash equivalents - net of
provisions (Note 15) 17,685,787 12,192,223 1,173,033 1,143,632

32,491,721 32,068,360 15,665,735 17,907,150
Less: other receivables that do not give

rise to credil risk (2,150,065) (2,560,778)  (644,824)  (398,792)
Provision for impairment (939,448) (2,021,858)  (429,168)  (56,394)
Maximum exposure to credit risk 20,402,210 27,485724 14,591,738 17,451,664

Trade and other receivables {including contract assats)

The Group assesses the credit qualily of its trade customers, the majority of which are unrated, taking
into account financial position, past experience and other factors. The Group's exposure to credit
risk is influenced mainly by the Individual characleristics of each customer. It has policies in place to
ensure that sales of services are affected to customers with an appropriate credit history. Standard
credit terms are in place for individual clients, however, wherever possible, new corporate customers
are analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Group’s standard payment and service
delivery lerms and conditions are offered. The creditworthiness analysis for new customers Includes
a review through external creditworthiness databases when available

The Group manages credit limils and exposures actively in a praclicable manner such that past due
amounts receivable from customers are within controlled parameters.

The Group has debtor balances amounting to €7,342,512 (2019: €8,6986,458) that are covered by
Istters of credit. The Group does not hold any other significant collateral as security.
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Financlal risk management - continued
2.1 Flnancial risk factors - continued
(b) Credit risk - continued

In view of the nature of the Group's activities and the market in which it operates, a imited number
of customers account for a certain percentage of the Group's trade and other receivables. The largest
client exposure accounts for 50% (2019: 40%) of the trade debtor balances of which 100%
{2019: 100%) are covered by letiers of credit. The exposure Is further covered by a credit note which
has been accrued for within these financial statements, These exposures are monitored and reported
more frequently and rigorously. These customers trade frequently with the Group and are deemed
by management, usually taking cognisance of the performance history without defaults, to have
excellent cradit standing.

Impairment of trade and other receivables (including conlract assels)

The Group applies IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, irade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles
of sales over a period of time before the reporting date and the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroecenomic faclors affecting the abllity of the tenants to setlle the
receivables. The Group adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes In these factors.
The Group's debtors are principally in respect of fransactions with costumers for whom there is no
recent history of default. Management does not expect any material losses from non-performance
by these customers. On the basis of this analysis and cansidering that the Group never experienced
malerial defaulls from its receivables, no adjustments to impairment provisions on trade receivables
were required upon adoption of IFRS 9, as the identified impairment loss is insignificant.

Following the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group has monitored information available on
macroeconomic factors, affecting repayment ability, as well as the actual and projected impact of the
pandemic on the business model of the customers serviced by the Group. Payment patterns
attributable to the Group's customers post COVID-19 outbreak was thoroughly and regularly
assessed io determine whether any deterioration in collection rates was being experienced. The
Group determined that the expected credit losses have not materially changed laking cognisance of
the projected impact on the repayment ability of the Group's customers, the repayment pattern
actually experienced, and the estimated life of receivables.

Credit loss allowances include specific provisions against credit impaired individual exposures with
the amount of the provisions being equivalent to the balances attributable to credit impaired
recelvables. The individually credit impaired trade receivables mainly refate to independent
cusiomers which are in unexpectedly difficult economic situations mostly due to geopolitical issues
and which are accordingly not meeting repayment obligations. In this respect, the Company has
recognised specific impalrment provisions during the current financial year, against credit impaired
individual exposures which have demonstrated objective evidence of being impaired.

As at 31 December 2020, irade receivables for the Group and Company amounting lo €939,446
(2019; €2,021,858) and €266 (2019: €6,114), respectively, were impaired and the amount of the
provisions in this respect are equivalent to these amounts.

ar
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Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
(b) Credit risk - continued

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the
failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.

Impairment losses on trade recelvables and contract assels are presented as net impairment losses
within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounls previously written off are crediled against
the same line item.

Cash and cash equivalents

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents for Group and Company is considered negligible since
the majority of the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings. The
Group and Company assessed the expected credit loss for cash and cash equivalents. The loss
allowances for these financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The identified impairment loss was insignificant except for a bank balance at a subsidiary
for which a credit ioss allowance of €109,072 {2019; €114,935) was considered.

The closing loss allowances for cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2020 reconcile to the
opening loss allowances as follows:

2020 2019
Group € €
Cash
Balance at 1 January 114,935 112,416
Decrease in loss allowance recognised
In profit or loss during the year (5,863) 2,519
Balance at 31 December 109,072 114,935

Other financial assets at amortised cost

The Company's other financial assets at amortised cost include lease receivables, loans and other
current receivables due from subsidiaries, which are eliminated on consolidation (Notes 7, 11 and
12). The Company monitors intra-group credit exposures at individual entity level on a regular basis
and ensures timely performance of these assets in the context of ils overall liquidity management.

The loss allowances for these financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Company's management uses judgement in making these assumptions,
based on the counterparty’s past history, existing market conditions, as well as forward looking
eslimates at the end of each reporting period.
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Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
{b) Credit risk - continued

As at year-end, based on the directors' assessments of these faclors, the equity position of the
respective counterparty, and, whera the probability of default is high, the recovery strategies
contemplated by management and the support of shareholders in place, the resulting Impairment
charge required for loans and other current receivables was of €48,375 and €428,902 respectively
{2019: €48,375 and €50,290 respectively).

The closing loss allowances for other financial assets at amortised cost as at 31 December 2020
reconcile to the opening loss allowances as follows:

2020 2019

Company € €
Other financial assets at amortlsed cost
Balance at 1 January 98,665 102,025
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or loss

during the year 378,612 {3,360)
Balance at 31 December 477,277 98,665

{c} Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed o liquidity risk in refation to meeting future obligations associated with its
financial llabllities, which comprise lease liabilities (Note 17) interest-bearing borrowings (Note 19)
and trade and other payables {Note 18). Prudent liquidity risk management inciudes maintaining
sufficient cash and committed credit Jines to ensure the availability of an adequate amount of funding
to meet the Company’s obligations.

Management monitors liquidity risk by means of cash flow forecasts which are updated on a regular
basis. The Group's liquidity risk is not deemed to be material in view of the maltching of cash inflows
and oulflows arising from operalions.
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Financial risk management - continued

2.1 Financial risk factors - conlinued

(c) Liguidity risk - continued

The lable below analyses the Graup and Company's principal financial liabilities into refevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining term at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Group

31 December 2020

Listed bond

Bank overdraft

Trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

Other bank loans and
facilities

Total

31 December 2019

Listed bond

Bank overdraft

Trade and olher payables

Lease liabiiities

Other bank loans and
facilities

Total

Due
Carrying | Contractua! between2  after more
amount | cash flows within 1 year and 5years than 5 years
€ € € € €
11,849,892 | 15,132,000 522,000 2,088,000 12,522,000
483,702 493,702 493,702 - -
25,408,326 | 25,408,326 25,408,326 - -
24,064 639 | 32,720,526 4,787,974 14,450,146 13,482,406
11,360,021 | 11,710,473 7,087,284 4,218,461 404,728
73,176,580 | 85,465,027 38,299,286 20,756,607 26,409,134
11,821,296 | 15,654,000 522,000 2,088,000 13,044,000
425,105 425,105 425,105 - -
27,385,752 | 27,385,752 27,385,752 - -
26,697,061 | 40,673,004 4,829,770 5,394,164 30,449,070
7,193,970 7,216,876 6,776,698 440,178 -
73,523,184 | 91,354,737 38,939,325 7,822,342 43,493,070
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2, Financial risk management - continued

2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

(c) Liguidity risk - continued

Due
Carrying | Contractual between2  after more
amount | cash flows within 1 year and 5years than 5years
€ € € € €
Company
31 Dacember 2020
Loan from subsidiary 4,500,000 5,517,500 247 500 4,216,000 1,054,000
Bank averdraft 114,308 114,308 114,308 - -
Trade and other payables 4,122,868 | 4,122,868 4,122,868 - -
Lease liabilities 9,591,024 | 11,215,659 1,606,316 6,831,805 2,777,538
Bank and other loans 796,882 819,094 316,914 502,180 -
Total 16,125,082 | 21,789,429 6,407,906 11,549985 3,881,538
31 December 2019
Loan from subsidiary 4,500,000 | 5,765,500 247,500 3,410,000 2,108,000
Bank overdraft 122,529 122,529 122,529 - -
Trade and other payables 3,801,160 | 3,801,160 3,801,160 - -
Lease liabilities 11,411,081 | 14,158,364 1,459,841 1,556,980 11,142,543
Bank and olher loans 797,676 820,582 380,404 440,178 -
Total 20,632,456 j 24,669,135 6,011,434 5,407,458 13,250,543

Contractual cashflows on lease liabilities payable by the Company include €10,133,024 (2019:
€12,955,934) for which cashflows will be funded by the lease receivables due from subslidiaries (Note
7.

2.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability lo continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capltal structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may issue new shares or adjust the amount of dividends pald to
shareholders

The Group's equity, as disclosed in the statement of financial position, constitutes its capital. The
Group maintains the level of capital by reference lo its financial obligations and commitments arising
from operations and requirements. In view of the nature of the Group's aclivities and the extent of
borrowings or debl, the capital level as at the end of the reporting perlod is deemed adequate by the
directors,
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Financial risk management - continued
2.2 Capital risk management - continued

The Group monitors the level of capital on the basis of the ratio of aggregated net debt to tolal capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (as shown in the statement of financial position) less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capilal is calculated as equity, as shown in the respective statement of
financial position, plus net debt.

The figures In respect of the Group's and Company's equity and borrowings as at 31 December are
reflected below:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
Borrowings (Note 19) 23,703,615 19,440,371  §411,190 5420205
Lease liabilities {Note 17) 24,064,639 26,697,061 9,591,024 11,435,566
Less: cash and cash equivalents {Nole 15) (17,685,787) (12,192,223) (1,173,033) (1,143,632)
Net debt 30,082,467 33,945,209 13,829,181 15,712,139
Total equity 8,590,510 9,788,379 16,918,894 17,733,479
Total capital 38,672,977 43,733,588 30,748,075 33,445518
Net debt ratio 77.8% 77.6% 45.0% 46.9%

The Group manages the relationship between equity injections and borrowings, being the constituent
elements of capital as reflected abave, wilh a view to managing the cost of capital. The level of capital,
as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position, is maintained by reference to the
Group's respective financial obligations and commitments arising from operational requirements. In
view of the nature of the Group's activities and the extent of debt, the capilal level at the end of the

reporting period determined by reference to the consalidated financial statements is deemed adequate
by the Directors.
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Financial risk management - continued
2.3 Fair values of financiat instruments

The table below analyses financial Instrtuments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
differant levels have been defined as follows:

+ Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assels or liabilities (level 1).

» Inputs other than quoled prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either direclly (that is, as prices) or indirectiy (that is, derived from prices) {level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that s, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

Group and Company
Level 3
€

31 December 2020

Assets
Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income:
Equity securities

Unlisted .

31 December 2019

Assets
Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income:
Equity securitles

Unlisted 321,000

If one or more of lhe significant inpuls is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3. The Group and Company's instrument included in level 3 comprises a private
equity investment, disclosed in Note 10 of these financial statements, which also includes a
reconciliation from opening to closing value of the instrument.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019 the carrying amounts of cash at bank, loans and receivables,
receivables, payables, and borrowings reflected in the financial statements are reasonable estimates
of fair value.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other
factors including expectations of future evenls that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

In the opinion of the directors, the accounting estimates and judgements made in the course of
preparing these financial statements are not difficult, subjective or complex to a degree which would
warrant their description as critical in terms of the requirements of 1AS 1.
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4.

Intangible assets

Group

At 1 January 2019
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2019
Opening net book amount
Additions

Currency franslation
Amortisation charges

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2019
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2020
Opening net book amount
Additions

Currency translation
Amortisation charges

Closing net boock amount
At 31 December 2020

Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

Computer
software
{in development
stage) Goodwill Others Total
€ € € €
- 1,085,688 247,759 1,313,447
- - {50,890) (50,890)
- 1,065688 196,869 1,262,557
- 1,065,688 196,869 1,262,557
- - 10,465 10,465
- (24) (24)
- - (9,370) {9,370)
- 1,065,688 197,940 1,263,628
- 1,065,688 258,200 1,323,888
- - (60,260) (60,260}
- 1,065,688 197,940 1,263,628
- 1,065,688 197,940 1,263,628
655,560 - 18,832 674,392
- - 1,022 1,022
- - {24,213) (24,213)
655,560 1,065,688 193,581 1,914,829
655660 1,065,688 278,054 1,999,302
- - {84,473) (84,473)
655,660 1,065,588 193,581 1,914,829

impalrment tast lor goodwill with an indefinite usciul life

The Group's reporied goodwill is atiribulable to business combinations effected in prior years. The

Group tests whether goodwill suffered any impairment on an annual basis,

For the purposes of the impairment test, one cash generating unit (CGU) was identified, which
comprises the operations of Hudson Malta plc. Group. Therefore, tha recoverable amount of
goodwill has been determined based on value-in-use calculations of the CGU, These calculations
use post-tax cash flow projections reflecting the estimales for the years 2021 to 2027 as approved

by the Board of Directors.
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Intangible assets - continued
Impairment fest for goodwill with an indefinite useful life - continued

The key assumptions in the delermination of the recoverable amount of the CGU are the levels of
forecast EBITDA, capital expenditure, the terminal value growth rates applied to the estimated
cashflows beyond the explicit forecast period and the discount rate. Forecast EBITDA levels are
based on past experience, adjusted for market developments and industry trends,

The post-tax discount rate applied to in the value-in-use calculation of the CGU was 8.4%
(2019: 8.4%) whilst the long-term growth rate applied in the valuation of the residual value was 1.4%
(2019: 1.4%). These parameters have been principally based on market observable dala,

Group management's method for determining the values inherent to each significant assumption Is
based on experience and expectations regarding the performance of the market. It was determined
that the recoverable amount is greater than the carrying amount and consequently, no impairment
charge was required for 2020.

The carrying amount of the CGU currenlly exceeds ils recoverable amount by €3,621,000. The
recaverable amount of this CGU would equal its' carrying amount If the post-tax discount rate is
increased from 8.4% to 10.9% or projected annual EBITDA is 16% lower.

Company Computer

software

{in deveiopment
stage) Totat
€ €

Year ended 31 December 2020

Opening net book amount o -
Additions 655,560 655,560
Closing net book amount 655,560 655,550

At 31 December 2020
Cost 655,560 655,560

Net book amount 655,560 655,560
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HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annuat Report and Consolidated Financial Stalements - 31 December 2020

5. Property, plant and equipment - continued

Company

At 1 January 2019
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year anded 31 December 2019
Opening net book amount
Additions

Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 Pecember 2019
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 341 December 2020
Opening net book amount
Additions

Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2020
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Furniture,

fixtures

Improvements Motor  and other
to premises vehicles equipment Tatal
.__........._€ e e E
22,516 16,184 1,121,406 1,160,106
(6,617) {8,044) (512,334) (526,995)
15,899 8,140 609,072 633,111
15,899 8,140 609,072 633,111
- - 582,648 582,648
(2,252) {2,789) (171,428) (176,467)
13,647 5351 1,020,284 1,039,292
22,516 16,184 1,704,054 1,742,754
(8,869) (10,833) (683,760} (703,462)
13,647 5,351 1,020,284 1,039,282
13,647 5,351 1,020,294 1,039,292
- 2,778 39,095 41,873
(2,252} (2,424  (175,889) (180,565)
11,395 5,705 883,500 900,600
22,516 18,962 1,743,149 1,784,627
(11,121) (13,257) (859,649) (884,027)
11,396 5,705 883,500 900,600

qg.l



HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED

6. Right-of-use assets

Year ended 31 December 2019
Impact on adoption of IFRS 16
Additions

Amartisation charge

Currency translation differences

Clesing net book ameunt

Year ended 31 December 2020
Opening net book value
Addilions

Disposals

Lease modifications

Currency transiation differences
Amortisation charge

Amortisation released on disposal

Closing net bock amount

The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Amortisation charge of right-of-use
assets

Interest income (included in finance
income}

Interest expense {included in finance
cosl)

Rent rebates in relation to Covid-19
(Naote 17)

Expense relating to variable lease
payments not included in lease
liabilities (included in administrative
expenses)

2020
€

4,564,071

1,088,579

(993,085)

874,742

Group  Company
€ €
26,473,406 910,847
4,469,054 -
(4,316,624) {75,974}
125,112 -
26,750,948 834,873
26,750,948 834,873
2,800,039 66,521
{1,475,378) -
{502,079) -
(21,585) -
(4,564,071) {77,299)
644,585 -
23,632,459 824,095
Group Company
2019 2020 2019
€ € €
4,316,624 77,289 75,974
- (366,143} {412,834}
1,032,808 400,964 449,268
- (5,920) -
382,049 5,600 4258
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Lease receivables

Company
2020 2019
€ €
Non-current 7,672,965 8,436,815
Current 1,074,070 1,116,526

8,747,035 10,533,341

All lease receivables relate to amounts due from subsidiarles, relating to sub-leasing of leased
properties by the Company. Such leases are deemed to be finance leases as the terms of the sub-
lease agreemenls with subsidiaries are aligned with the original lease agreements with third parties
and therefore, the Company is effectively transferring all risks and rewards relating to the leased
assets for the same term and consideration. Therefore, the right-of-use assels relating to such
agreements have been derecognised by the Company.

Investment in subsidiaries

Company

2020 2019
€ €

Year ended 31 December
Al beginning of year 18,451,227 18,764,574
Additions - 26
Movement in provision for impairment - (313,373}
At end of year 18,451,227 18,451,227

&0



e e P et RSB e

LS

(1Z0z woy se uonepinby ul)
°,0000%  %00°00F %0000 %0000} %0000l %00°001 pupen 15 ssaxesus ajbunf ueqn

ejew ‘Aeg £jned 1S
peueuLng ‘PEOY peuslIng
9,00°001 %00°00L %0000} %00°001L %00°00L %00°00) '$SNOH UOSPNH pajwI 07 JBUokEULBIY) PN

Ajey) ‘rodeN
62108 '9/LE
%0000l %00°00L %0000l %%00°'00L 0066 %00°66 'DIIUBLIOY OZUBDUIA BlA YIS PajwiT suolesadQ uele|

elew ‘Aeg sned1s {payun (Hods)
peUeuLng 'peoy peuewlng [euoneiuaiu] awl) ApauLio))
°,00°00L %00°00F %00001L 900004 %0000} %00°00L ‘9snoH uospnH pajui SejeS EJEW uaspny
6L0T 6zoz 6L0T 0202 6L0Z 0z0z
dnous) ayj Aq Auedwog ay) Aq dnoagy ayy Aq aolyo paleysifiay sauepIsqns
pipyIsaiaul  ApoaJip pjay Jsasau  pray siybu Gunoa
diysisumg diyssaumo
‘sasBYS

Aeuipio Jo Asjos Bupsisuos [eNded aieys aABY ASU) 'DIIEIS 9SIMIGI0 SS|UN "MO|Sq UMOYS 818 §LOZ PUE 0ZOZ J2qwada( L€ 18 Se sauelpisans |ediouud ay|

panuyuos - SSURIPISqNS Ul sJUsunseAy] ‘g

0Z0Z Joquaoa(] LE - SJUSLUBIEIS [BISUBULY PIIEPIOSLOT) pue Hodoy [enuuy
a3a LW SONIQTOH NOSQNH



4]

eaue|geSED
auey Jsent)
%00°00f %00°00L - - %0000} %00°00} Ipnossaly |3 any ‘L dvs coocotol g4

spuest wbip ysnug
BIOHO] 'umo] peoy

%00°00L %0000 - - %0000} %00°0CL 'L %08 '0O'd paliw dnois) [euonewsiul g
B|Siun] 'siung
'PO01 Al Yyezua 13 (uonepinby w)
%0000l %0000F - - %0000 %00°00L ‘afieja awag ‘gg0L BNl ¢ TYYS BIsiUn ) dd

ejlep 'Aeg sned 1
peuzULNg ‘pEOY pPELEWING
%0000l %00°00% - - %0000l  %00°00L ‘asnoH uospny  papw|] dnosg jeucnewy) Qg

Blepy ‘Aeg s,ned 1s

peuBULRg 'PECY PRUBULING pajywr)
%00°00L %0000 - - %0000f %00°00) ‘8snoH wospny Auedwog [euoRewBiu| WY
=ie ‘Aeg sined s
peleuung ‘peoy peusulng (uonepinby ur)
%00°001L %00°00} - - %0000} %00°00L ‘asnoH uospnp pajiru G sawi|
6L0¢ 0zoz 6LOZ 0zZoz 6L0C 0zZ0¢
dnoig ay; Aq Auedwon aip Aq dnougy ay; Aq 2210 pase)sibay sauepIsqns
RI3Y }saiajul Anoaap pley Jsasaul  pray sy Bupop
diysiaumo diysiaump

panuRuUOd - SBMBIPISTNS U] SJUBWISAAL} ‘B

020z 48qWadaq L - SJUSWSIEIS [BIOUBUI] PaJEPI[OSUOY) Pu. poday [enuuy
Q31NN SONIGTIOH NOSanH



SESSEA e I e

£G

euabiy 'soben
6L¥Z 08 Od 'PUBIS] BUOIIA pajwr eusbiN
%0000l %00°00F - - %0000  %00°001 'pecy uonesodioD 1B1EM €S Juawdojaas puesg UospAH

AleN ‘s¥1L0T d¥2
5,00°001 %00°00) %0000} %00°00F %00°001 %00°00L 16 ESOY UK BIA OBl TuS elle) vospnH

gjey ‘Aeg s,ned is
pRUBLLNG ‘pECY PRUBLLING
2,00°00L %00°00L %0000l 9%D00°00L %0000l 9%00°'001 '9SNOH UoSpNH O|d ENEW Uospny

Auedwon
08 ainua Juiof Sadnes
eAgn ‘edul uopeiedo pue Juawsbeuew
%0058 %0059 - - %00°'59 %00°59 voa.g ysasebiag sanynn eAgqry wospnH

22y 'Aeg sned 1S {120z W paywi s9eS Elel
pEuEULNg ‘PEOY pEUBULNG uospnyy oju pabisaw) panwi

%00°00) %00°00b %00°004 %00°00) %00°00L %00°00F ‘asnoy uospny  Auedwo [eUo)eUISIU| UOSPRK

spueys| WBIA Ysnug
ej0)0] ‘umo) pecy

%00°'001 %00'00L - s %00°001L  %00°001 ‘gllex08 'O'd penwI soueyy siods
6102 020z 8102 0z0z 6102 0zoz
dnoug a3 Aq Auedwon sy Ag dnoig ayi Aq 201340 paJaysiBay sayepisqnsg
play 1saiauy Apoaaip pIay 1sadeu)  plat syubu Bupopa
diystaumgp diysiaumo

panuiuod - SMEPISANS Uf SjUdURSIAY] '8

0Z0Z J8quwasa( LE - SJUSLLIIRIS |SIDUBULY PIIER]I0SUOS pue Hodsy jenulny
GALININ SONIQTOH NOSAnH



HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report and Consolidated Financia! Statements - 31 December 2020

8, Investment in assoclate

Grotp
2020 2019
€ €
Year ended 31 December
At beginning of year 792,913 285,062
Additions - -
Share of (loss)/profit for the year (201,627} 471,581
Currency translation differences {58,088) 6,270
At end of year 533,198 762,913
Percentage of shares directly
Associate Registared office held by the Group
2020 2019
Y %
Premiurn Brands SARL 29 rue des Pins Investments Park 2, 44.50 44 50

16035, Hydra, Algeria

10. Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive Income

Group and Company

2020 2019
€ €
Year ended 31 December
As at 1 January 321,000 1,500,000
Fair value movements {321,000) (1,179,000}
As at 31 December - 321,000
As at 31 December
Cost 418,476 418,476
Fair value {418,476} (97,476)
- 321,000

The Group’s equily investments, as at 31 December 2020, consists of equity instruments in an
unlisted foreign private company, GRP 3ina SL, which is fair valued annually. Fair value is estimated
by reference to recent transactions. Accordingly, the available-for-sale invesiment is categorised as
Level 3 within the fair value measurement hierarchy required by IFRS 13 The change in the fair
value of the investment is recognised in other comprehensive income in a fair value reserve.
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11. Financial assets at amortised cost

Company
2020 2019
€ €
Current
Loans receivable from subsidiaries 3,440,000 3,440,000
Less: credit loss allowance In line with IFRS 9 (48,375) (48,375)

3,391,625 3,391,625

Loans receivable from subsidiaries bear interest at 5.5% and are repayabie by 2026

12. Trade and other raceivables

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
Trade receivables 11,423,925 14,958,936 254,772 21,848
Less: Provisions for impairment {939,446) (2,021,858) {266) {6,114)
Trade receivables - net 10,484,479 12,937 078 251,506 15,734
Other receivables 1,230,351 1,429,561 190,512 -
Amount owed by subsidiaries - net of
provisions - - 980,169 2,299,257
Amount due from associate 1,593 926,862 - -
Indirect tax recoverable 895,317 1,545,964 26,029 248,097
Prepayments and accrued income 1,254,748 1,014,814 428,283 150,695
13,866,488 17,854,279 1,876,499 2,713,783
Current 13,702,437 17,688,770 1,876,499 2,713,783
Non-current 164,051 165,508 - -

The amounts owed by subsidiaries and associates are unsecured, repayable on demand and subject
lo interest at 4% (2019: 4%). Amounts owed by subsidiaries are stated net of a provision of
€428,902 (2019: €50,280).
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13.

Deferrad tax liability/{asset)

Deferred taxes are calculated on temporary differences under the liability method and are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply lo the period when the asset is realized or the liability is
seltled based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The principal tax rate used is 35% {2019: 35%).

The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
At beginning of year {789,504) 843,492 (39,855) 177,717
Credited to income statements (Note 25) (33,945) (1,428,891) {19,058) (14,786)
Currency translation differences 8,978 {1,319) - -
Directly in other comprehensive income
{Nate 25) - {202,786) - (202,786)
At end of year {814,471) (789,504) (58,913) (39,855)

Deferred tax movement recognised in other comprehensive income relate o movement in fair value
of equity investments held at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The balance at 31 December represents:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
Net temporary difference arising on
of property, plant and equipment {202,758) {200,173) (5,009} 6,587
Temporary differences arising on
impairment of receivables (106,703)  (376,536) (35,802) (37,849)
Temporary differences arising an
foreign income 37,824 (27,441) - -
Temporary differences arising on
unutilised tax losses {67,156) {6,390) - -
Ternporary differences arising due
unabsarbed capital allowances (271,853) (2,007) - -
Temporary differences on
right-of-use assets (203,825} {176,957) (18,102) (8,593)
Deferred tax (asset)fiiability {814,471} (789,504) (58,913) (39,855)




HUDSON HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

13. Deferred tax liability/{asset) - continued

The recognised deferred tax assels and liabilities are expecled to be recovered or setlled principally
after more than twelve months. The analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax (asset)liability

14. Inventories

Goods held for resale

15. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand - net of

provisions

Bank overdrafts (Nole 19)

Group
2020 2019
€ €

(859,702)  (B44,066)

45,231 54,562

Company
2020 2019
€ €

{67,315) 39,855
§,402 -

(814,471) (789,504) .

(58,913) 39,855

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
14,138,417 15,038,922 - -
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €

17,685,787 12,192,223

(493,702)  (425,105)

1,173,033 1,143,632
(114,308)  (122,529)

17,192,085 11,767,118

1,058,725 1,021,103

Cash at bank Is stated net of a provision of €108,072 (2019: €114,935) In line with the expected credit

loss model following the adoption of IFRS 9.
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16. Share capital and reserves

The authorised and issued share capilal as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

Company
2020 2019
€ €
Authorised

18,341 ordinary ‘A’ shares of €2.329373 each 42,723 42,723
4,546 ordinary 'B’ shares of €2.329373 each 10,590 10,580
4,546 ordinary 'C' shares of €2.329373 each 10,590 10,590
4,546 ordinary 'D’ shares of €2.329373 each 10,590 10,580
3,205 ordinary 'E' shares of €2.329373 each 7,465 7.465
1,352 ordinary ‘F’ shares of €2.329373 each 3,149 3,149
85,107 85,107

issued and fully pald
18,341 ordinary ‘A’ shares of €2 329373 each 42,723 42,723
4,546 ordinary 'B' shares of €2.329373 each 10,590 10,580
4,546 ordinary 'C’ shares of €2.329373 each 10,590 10,590
4,546 ordinary 'D' shares of €2.329373 each 10,590 10,590
3,205 ordinary ‘'E' shares of €2.329373 each 7,465 7.465
1,352 ordinary 'F' shares of €2.329373 each 3,149 3,149
85,107 85,107

The holders of the ordinary A, B, C, D, E, and F shares rank 'pari passu’ in all respects except for
voling rights for appointment of directors. The holders of ordinary shares A have a right to appoint
five directors, holders of ordinary shares B, C, D, and E have a right to appoint one director each and
holders of ordinary shares F are not entitled to appoint a director.

The foreign exchange translation reserve represents the effect of translalion into the Group's
presentation cumrency of the financial performance and position of those entities whose functional
currency is not the euro.
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Lease liabilities

2020 2019
€ €
Group
Non-current 20,589,229 23,714,890
Current 3475410 29821714
24,064,639 26,697,061
Group
At beginning of the year 26,697,061 26,282,118
Additions 2,800,039 4,469,054
Disposals {1,055,225) -
Lease modifications (357,198) -
Covid-19 lease concessions (993,085) -
Interest expense 1,088,579 1,032,808
Payments effected (4,255,201} (5,091,140}
Difference on exchange 139,669 4,221
24,064,839 26,697,061
2020 2019
€ €
Company
Non-current 8,475,115 10,220,375
Current 1,415,209 1,215,191
9,591,024 11,435,566
Company
At beginning of the year 11,435,666 11,788,132
Additions 66,521 674,910
Covid-19 lease concessions (5,920) -
Interest expense {400,964) (449,2868)
Payments effected for propeties used by the company (85,013) (89,531)
Payments effected for properties used by subsidiaries of the company
{Note 7) (1,419,166} (488,677}

9,691,024 11,435,566

Most extension options in property leases have been included in the lease liability.

The contractual undiscounted cash flows attributable to Iease liabilities as at 31 December are
analysed in Note 2(c).
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Lease liabilities - continued

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, rent concessions have been granted to lessees. Such
concessions might take a varlety of forms, including payment holidays and deferral of lease
payments. In May 2020, the JASB made an amendment to IFRS 16 - Leases which provides lessees
with an option to treat qualifying rent concessions in the same way as they would if they were not
lease modifications. The Group has applied this practical expedient for all qualifying lease
concessions and, as a result, has accounted for such concessions as variable lease payments in the
period in which they are granted.

Trade and other payables

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
Current
Trade payables 18,073,210 20,653,319 586,959 271,317
Amounts owed to subsidiaries - - 2,232,138 2,386,565
Amounts owed to related
undertakings - 3,853 - -
Amounts owed to shareholders 265,834 757,942 266,834 757,942
Indirect taxation and other payables 3,801,263 2,366,474 445,286 169,548
Accruals 3,268,019 3,604,164 590,650 215,788

25,408,326 27385752 4,922,868 3,801,160

Amounts owed to group and related undertakings are unsecured, repayable on demand and subject
to interest at 4% (2019: 4%). Amounts owed to shareholders are unsecured and bear interest at 4%
(2019: 4%). These amounts have no fixed date for repayment and the Group has an unconditiona!
right to defer seltlement of these amounts for at least twelve months after the date of the statement
of financial position.

Borrowings
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

€ € € €
Current
Bank overdrafis 493,702 425,105 114,308 122,529
Bank loans and other facilities 7,021,087 6,751,773 295,238 368,884
Total current 7,514,789 7,176,878 409,546 491,413
Non-current
Loan from subsidiary - - 4,500,000 4,500,000
Listed bond 11,849,892 11,821,296 - -
Bank loans 4,338,924 442 197 501,644 428,792
Total nan-cutrent 16,188,826 12,263,493 5,001,644 4,928,792
Total borrowings 23,703,615 19,440,371 5411,190 5,420,205

The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair value.
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Borrowings - continued

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
Within one year 7,514,788 7,176,878 408,546 431,413
Between 1 and 2 years 1,085,955 168,756 253,735 168,756
Between 2 and 5 years 2,334,663 260,036 247,909 260,036
Over 5 years 12,768,208 11,834,701 4,500,000 4,500,000
23,703,615 19,440,371 5411190 5,420,205

At the end of tha reporting period, the Group and the Company had a total maximum general banking
facillty limit of €32.5 million (2019: €33.3 million) and €2.4 million (2019: €2.6 million) respectively.

The Group has an invoice financing arrangement with a local institution allowing for a prepaid facility
for pre-selected receivable balances up to a maximum of €850,000 (2019: €850,000).

The Bond of €12,000,000 s repayable by 2028, bears interest at 4.35%, payable annually In arrears
on 6 April of sach year and is stated at net of unamortised bond issue costs of €150,108.

The Group is charged interest on bank loans and other facilities at the rate of 4% per annum (2019:
4% per annum). The Company's overdraft facilities and bank loans bear interest at the rate of 4%
{2018: 4%). These facilities are secured by a first speclal hypothec over the Group and the
Company's assets.

BD Morocco, a subsidiary of the Group has a banking facility amounting to €0.9 milion, bearing
interest of 3.5% and repayable by 2028.

Loan from subsidiary bears interest at 5.5%, is unsecured, and is repayable by 2026.

During 2020, the Group successfully applied for loans through the COVID-18 Guarantee Scheme
supported by the Malta Development Bank {MDB) amounting to €5,350,000 repayable within five
years from initial drawdown and carries interest of 2.5% plus 3-month EURIBOR. In line with the
Malta Development Bank COVID-19 Guarantee Scheme, this loan will benefit from a subsidy of2.4%
for the first two years. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had not yet drawn down facilities
amounting to €1,850,000.

Revenue
Revenue represents the amounts receivable for goods sold and services rendered during the year,

net of any indirect taxes. The following amounts have been included in lhe income statement line for
the reporting period presented:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
Retait 33,005,012 44,245962 - -
Wholesale 51,760,099 68,970,299 - -
Management fees - - 3,680,544 4,323,254
84,755,111 113,216,261 3,680,544 4,323,254
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21. Expenses by nature

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2018
€ € € €
Purchases of goods for resale 58,266,912 77,324,671 - -
Write down in invenlory value 292,865 322,600 - -
Commissions payable 551,338 1,039,521 - o
Royalties 1,207,290 1,634,322 - -
Other direct expenses 2,130,941 1,446,127 - 61,146
Employee benefit expense {Note 22) 7,751,492 10,339,306 2,365,957 2,685,542
Covid-19 rent rebates {993,085) - (5,920) -
Amortisation of intangible assets (Nole 4) 24,213 9,370 - -
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment (Note 5) 1,931,145 2,088,084 180,565 176,467
Depreciation of right of use assets
{Note 6) 4,664,071 4,316,624 77,299 75,974
Rent and common charges 874,742 1,549,458 5,600 4,258
Legal and professional fees 874,506 1,109,631 244,682 213,615
Mavement in expected credit loss
allowance (Note 12) (1,082,412) 497,834 378,612 1,935
Bad debts written off 1,182,891 - - -
Bank charges 736,148 869,859 15,036 21,135
Adverllsing 1,474,824 1,409,286 19,482 43,253
Other expenses 3,310,307 3,991,733 714,818 815,398
Totat cost of sales, operation and
administrative expenses 83,097,986 107,948,436 3,996,131 4,098,723
Auditor's fees
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
Annual statutory audit 88,950 85,350 13,700 13,700
Non-audit fees 5,500 4,190 2,950 12,050
94,450 89,540 16,650 25,750
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22. Employee benefit expense

Wages and salaries
Social security costs

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
7,158,031 9,392,592 2,228,665 2,552,265
592,161 946,714 137,202 133,277
7,751,192 10,339,306 2,365,957  2,685542

Wages and salaries of the Group and Company are presented net of a payroll grant received from
the Government of Malta in view of the COVID-19 pandemic, amounting to €1,484,175 (2019: €NIL)
and €353,901 (2019: €NIL) respectively. Grants related fo income are presented as a deduction in

reporting the relaled expense.

The average number of persons employed during the year, including executive directors was made

up as follows:.

Administration and finance
Operations
Retail

23. Finance income

Interest income on lease receivables
Interest income on 2amounts due

by third parties
Interest income on amounts due

by subsidiaries

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
43 47 34 38
117 120 3 34
291 406 - -
451 573 65 72

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
- - 366,143 412,834
1,532 30,353 - -
- - 208,077 281,467
1,532 30,353 574,220 694,301
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Finance cosis

Interest on bank overdrafts and loans
Interest on amounts due to subsidiaries
Interest on loan from subsidiary
Interest charges on lease liabilities
Interest on loans to shareholders

Tax {credit)/expense

Current lax expense
Group relief

Deferred tax credit (Note 13)

Tax (credit)/expense through profit or

loss

Tax expense through

other comprehenslve income
Deferred tax on impairment of equity
investments held through OCI {Note 13)

Tolal tax (credilyfexpense

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
1,132,433 1,015,107 38,311 35,875
- 5 63,989 61,447
- - 247,500 247,500
1,088,579 1,032,808 400,964 449,268
10,682 45,374 10,682 45,374
2,231,694 2,093,289 751,416 839,464
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
32,791 3,408,729 - 177,734
- - 19,860 -
(33,945) (1,428,891) (19,058} (14,786)
(1,154) 1,979,838 802 162,948
- (202,786) - {202,786)
(1,154) 1,777,052 802 {39,838)
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25. Tax (credit)fexpense - continued

The tax on the profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the basic

tax rate as follows:

(Loss)/profit befare tax

Tax at 35%

Tax effect of:

Difference in tax rates

Unrecognised deferred tax in prior year
Expenses not allowable for lax

purposes
Other

Tax (credity/expense

26. Dividends

Dividends paid on ordinary shares - net

Dividends per share

27. Directors' emoluments

Salaries and other emoluments

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

€ € € €
(774,662) 3,676470 {492,783} 150,610
(271,132) 1,286,765 (172,474) 52,714
11,673 144,353 - -
43,096 {44,665) 3 .
216,405 427,138 173,276 110,234
(1,96) 166,247 - -
(1,154) 1,979,838 802 162,948

Group and Company

2020 2019

€ €

- 800,000
- 21.896

Group Company

2020 219 2020 2019

€ € € €
757,180 851,884 618,743 815,123
757,180 851,884 618,743 815,123
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Cash generated from operating activities

Group
2020 2019
€ €
Operating profit 1,657,126 5,267,825
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 4) 24,213 9,370
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment {Note 5) 1,931,145 2,088,084
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (Nota 5) 472,935 -
Amortisation right-of-use assets (Nole 8} 4,564,071 4,316,624
Covid-19 rent rebates (Note 17) (993,085) -
Loss on disposal of group companies - 147,077
Lease modifications {Note 6) {79,551) -
Movement in impairment of provision
on trade receivables (1,082,412} 497,834
Bad debts written off (Note 21) 1,182,991 -
Changes in working capital:
Inventories 900,505 4,347,752
Trade and other raceivables 3,783,851 (156,164)
Trade and cther payables {1,977,426) 2,903,542
Cash generated from
operations 10,384,363 19,421,944

Company
2020 2019
€ €
{315,587) 609,145
180,565 176,467
77,299 75,974
(5,920) -
20|997 -
{5,848) 1,886
843,129 437,156
321,708 1,062,847
1,116,343 2,363,476
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Related party transactions

Group

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into various transactions with related parties.
Related parties are defined as those thal have an ability to control or exercise sighificant Influence
over the other parly in making financial and operational decisions. These include directors and
shareholders who hold a substantial amount of the votes ahle 1o ba cast at general meetings.
Company

All companies forming part of the Hudson Group are considered by the directors to be related parties.

The following transactions were carried out by the Company with related parties:

2020 2019
€ €
Revenue
Revenue - subsldiaries 3,680,544 4,323,254
Interest income on lease receivables 366,143 412,834
Interest income on amounts due by subsidiaries 208,077 281,467
Expenses
Administralive expenses - key management personnel 1,169,221 1,056,349
Interest on lease fiabilities 366,143 412 834
interest on amounts due to subsidiaries 53,959 61,447
intarast on loans dua to subsidiaries 247,500 247,500
Interest on amounts due to shareholders 10,682 45,374

Key management personnel compensation censisting of directors’ remuneration is disclosed in Note
27 to these financial statements.

Year end balances owed by/to related parties are disclosed separately in Notes 7, 11, 12, 18 and 19
to these financial statements.
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30.

31.

Events subsequent to the reporting period
Completion of Merger of Subsidiaries

On 14 March 2021, the Group completed the merger by acquisition of Hudson International Company
Limited (HICL) by Time International (Sport) Limited (TISL), both being subsidiaries of the Hudson
Malta p.l.c..

In viriue of the afore-mentioned merger by acquisition, TISL, as the acquiring company, succeeded
to all the assets, righls, liabifities and obligations of HICL, which, in lurn, ceased to exist and has
been struck off with effect from 14 March 2021.

The said merger by acquisition will not have any effect on Hudson Malta p.l.c.’s shareholding in TISL
and the company continues to hold the totalily of the Ordinary shares issued in the said company.

Conditional Completion of Acquisition of Trilogy Limited

Following the obtaining of regulalory approval, Hudson Holdings Limited, the ultimate parent
company of the Hudson Group, has entered into a share-for-share exchange agreement with Trilogy
Limited (C 42528) dated 7 April 2021 {the ‘Framework Agreement For The Exchange Of Shares') in
connection with the potential acquisition of Trilogy Limited that wil result in the shareholders of Trilogy
Limited taking up shares in Hudson Holdings Limited. In terms of the Framework Agreement For The
Exchange Of Shares, completion of the proposed acquisilion is subject lo the salisfaction of certain
conditions precedent.

If the Framework Agreement for The Exchange Of Shares is executed, an Intra-group restructuring

is to be carried out pursuant to the terms thereof, whereby Trilogy Limited will become a fully-owned
subsidiary of Hudson Malta p.l.c.

Statutory information

Hudson Holdings Limited is a limited liability company and is incorporated in Malta, with ils registered
address at Hudson House, Burmarrad Road, Burmarrad, St. Paul's Bay, Malta.
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